ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2006
2:05 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Ral ph Sanuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Representative Ji m El ki ns
Representative Kurt O son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 304

"An Act relating to the comrercial fishing |oan program and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 328
"An Act prohibiting m xing zones in freshwater spawning waters."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 304

SHORT TI TLE. COMMERCI AL FI SHI NG LOAN PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

05/ 07/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

05/ 07/ 05 (H FSH, RES, FIN

03/ 22/ 06 (H FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 22/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 304(FSH) CQut of Conmittee
03/ 22/ 06 (H M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 24/ 06 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 2DP 3NR

03/ 24/ 06 (H DP: ELKINS, THOVAS;

03/ 24/ 06 (H NR. HARRI S, KAPSNER W LSON

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2006



04/ 03/ 06 (H RES AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
W TNESS REG STER

RYNNI EVA MOSS, St af f

to Representative John Coghill

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 304 on behalf of Representative
Coghi I I, sponsor.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

Di vi sion of Investnents

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that the state's comercial |oan
program for fishernen has been val uable and pays for itself.

LEA KLI NGERT, President

Al aska Commerci al Fishing and Agricul ture Bank (CFAB)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 304.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 2:05:39 PM Represent ati ves
Sanuel s, Seaton, LeDoux, Gatto and Kapsner were present at the
call to order. Representative Crawford arrived as the neeting

was in progress.

HB 304- COVMERCI AL FI SHI NG LOAN PROGRAM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 304, "An Act relating to the commerci al
fishing | oan program and providing for an effective date."

RYNNI EVA MOSS, Staff to Representative John Coghill, Al aska
State Legislature, said Representative Coghill has wanted to put
the Division of Investnents out of the |oan business for many
years, but the Division's director, Geg Wnegar, convinced him
of the need to keep the commercial fishing revolving |oan fund.

Representative Coghill believes governnent should not conpete
with the private sector, so he wants the | oan programto be used
only as a last resort. The bill sets new loan |imts and
changes sone provisions. She noted that the bill clarifies that

| oans are available only to those who are not eligible for
financing through a commercial lending institution. She said HB

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2006



304 sets the interest rate at the prine rate plus 2 percent. It
defines the prinme rate as the lowest United States nobney center
prime rate of interest published in the Wall Street Journal.

2:08: 19 PM

M5. MOSS said the |legislation reduces the anobunt of noney | oaned
on collateral to 80 percent of appraised value; it is currently
90 percent. Section 3 states that the division can | oan $35, 000
for delinquent federal taxes, raising it from $30, 000. Al
| oans conbined are linmted to $335, 000. She said that HB 304
repeals a provision that the fund allocate at |east 10 percent
of its nmoney for |oans of $35,000 or less, as requested by the
di vision, since that noney was underutilized.

2:09: 27 PM

M5. MOSS said Representative Coghill thinks the governnent
strings people along when they have businesses that are failing,
and he would like to prevent the continuous cycle of refinancing
when soneone is failing in business. She spoke of sone existing
| oans that are as high as $400,000, and said they are not just
one loan, but a series of refinancing. Represent ati ve Coghi l
doesn't want people to get into debt of over $500, 000.

2:10: 35 PM
CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked about a borrower not being eligible for a
| oan from another bank, and he said he can always find a bank

that will turn hi mdown.

M5. MOSS said it refers to an institution that has a | oan
application simlar to the division's application.

CO- CHAI R SAMUELS asked if the borrower needed to be turned down
by two banks. He said he wants to know the intent.

M5. MOSS responded that it would only need to be one bank.

2:11: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted on page 4, line 21, there is a
reference to $200,000, and he asked if it should be indexed to
Anchorage CPlI instead statutory. "Qtherwi se, in about four

years, that's going to equal very little—+n eight or ten years."

2:12: 17 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2006



GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent, said he has been

working wth Representative Coghill and appreciated his
willingness to listen to the concerns the division had with his
original bill. The division offered changes to the programthat
satisfied Representative Coghill's concerns wthout destroying
t he funding program which has hel ped thousands of Al askans over
the years. M. Wnegar said the program began in the early
1970s and was designed to pronote a predom nately resident
fishery. The legislature had realized that a large part of
Alaska's fleet was going to have problens wth accessing
capital. The program was intended to be sure that Al askans

could continue to participate in Alaska's fisheries, he noted.
CO CHAI R SAMJELS asked if the [l oan] anbunts have increased.

MR. WNEGAR said yes; prices have risen so the fund, interest
rates, and other terns have been adjusted. The program has been
very, very successful, he stated, and has helped over 6,000
har vest ers. He said the program has totally paid its own way
since fiscal year 1985. "In fact the legislature has
appropriated a lot nmore noney back out of the fund than went
into it originally.” He noted that the program is achieving
important policy goals of keeping Alaska's fisheries in Al aska,
and there are excess earnings that are going back to the general

fund to pay for other prograns. He said discussions of any
changes to the programis of concern to him but he is confident
that the CS will not cause mmjor problens.

2:14: 35 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS asked about "changing the anmount™ and the
"primry".

MR. WNEGAR said the prine rate is at 7.5 [percent].

CO CHAI R SAMJELS suggested that at 7.5 plus 2 percent, nobody
woul d finance through the programif a bank | oan was avail abl e.

2:15: 01 PM
MR. WNEGAR said the private rate would be either simlar or a
little higher. The program is flexible, working wth people

with difficult [fishing] seasons, because "the idea was to keep
these permts and these fisheries in the hands of Al askans.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2006



CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked if banks are conplaining that the program
is taking customers away.

MR. W NEGAR said he has heard no conplaints from other |enders,
except for the Commercial Fishing and Agriculture Bank (CFAB)
"which is where this legislation cane from"

2:15: 53 PM
CO CHAI R SAMJELS asked about bad debts in the program

MR. WNEGAR said the delinquency and default rate combined is
about 6.5 percent.

2:16: 07 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked about the problem of constant refinancing
that Ms. Mboss spoke of.

MR. W NEGAR said the section Ms. Mss spoke of relates to the
total that a person can get wunder various aspects of the
program and it is not refinancing necessarily; "probably what
it is, is sonebody went out and bought a vessel, for exanple

and then, say, two years later they want to buy quota share or a

permt. And the way the statute is worded, you can conbine
those various eligibilities. And right now you can get up to
$630, 000 by conbi ning those various types of prograns.”" He said
HB 304 would "ratchet that down to about $335, 000." He said
there are six borrowers in the existing portfolio that are now
over that anount. They would be grandfathered in, but it is a

smal | portion of the approximtely 1,600 current borrowers.
2:17: 28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how nmuch those si x have borrowed.

VR WNEGAR said five have borrowed between $335,000 and
$400, 000, and one has borrowed over $400, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how t he division's
[ del i nquency/default] rate conpares with commercial enterprises.

MR. WNEGAR said the programis rate is probably a little higher,
but he doesn't know.

2:18:43 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2006



CO CHAIR SAMUELS asked if the six people with large |oans could
re-finance [under the new | egislation].

MR. W NEGAR said he doesn't know.
2:19: 11 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS asked if it would nmake sense to clarify how
many banks a person needs to be turned down from

MR. W NEGAR said there is simlar |anguage already in statute,
and the division has interpreted it to be that only one bank
with a simlar |oan programwoul d be required.

2:20:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how many tinmes the |egislature has
i ncreased the fund due to demand fromthe [fishing] industry.

2:20: 34 PM

MR. W NEGAR sai d perhaps four to five tines since the 1970s.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that by indexing the nmaximm
l[imt to the Anchorage Consuner Price Index (CPl), it would take
care of the need to increase the anounts in the future.

MR. W NEGAR said that would be one way to do that.

2:21:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if "recognized" is a legal term in
reference to a lending institution.

MR. WNEGAR said the division considers any |ender that makes
t hose kinds of |oans, which would be maj or banks and CFAB.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a loan shark would be a
"recogni zed" | ender. He expressed concern that the intent of
t he sponsor is foll owed.

2:23.:45 PM
MR. WNEGAR said that has not happened yet, but he could see

where sonmeone could try and get around the J[eligibility
requi renent].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2006



CO CHAIR SAMJELS said he assunes that Wlls Fargo has simlar
types of | oans. He asked if the Alaska Industrial Devel opnent
and Export Authority would be considered a | ender.

2:24: 45 PM

MR. WNEGAR said the only other |ender that can nmake a |loan on a
[imted entry permt is CFAB. He said savings and |oans don't
make those kinds of | oans.

2:25:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the interest rate going from

10.5 [percent] to prime plus two. He asked if that neant the
rate woul d change or stay at 10.5

MR. W NEGAR said the statute prohibits the rate from exceedi ng

10.5 percent, and that has changed over the years. By
regul ation, the rate has been tied to the prime rate. "So the
way it works now, is the regulations say that the rate is prine
plus two, or, in the case of product quality |oans, prine mnus

two, not to exceed 10.5, which is the statutory cap. What this
provi sion would do would be to renove the cap, and so in effect
it would just say it cannot exceed prinme plus two. It would not
require us to go to that, but it says we could not exceed that."

2:26:50 PM

LEA  KLI NGERT, Pr esi dent Al aska  Conmmerci al Fishing and
Agriculture Bank (CFAB), said HB 304 is a conbined effort
between Alan Austerman [fisheries policy advisor to the
governor], the Division of Investnments, and CFAB. She referred
to the question from Co-Chair Sanuels about banks conplaining
about the state Jloan program and said, "Because of the
restriction in CFAB statute of what we can do and where we can
| end, we have probably nmade the nobst noise.” She said the
program doesn't affect other lenders to the extent that it
af fects CFAB. She said the bill attenpts to scale down the
powers of the Division of |nvestnent. She stated that over the
years the fishing industry has consolidated; the capital needs
of the industry have shrunk in nost areas. There are sone areas
where it has increased, but overall the amount required to get
into fishing today is less than it was five or ten years ago.

MS. KLINGERT said a public agency that conpetes with private

agenci es becones the preferred |ender, causing other |enders to
go do sonething different. She said Wells Fargo or Key Bank has

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2006



the option to look to other markets. But CFAB's statute
restricts it, so it still focuses on fishing, she said. She
surm sed that the intent of the legislature was not to elimnate
| oan options for private lenders. She stated that HB 304 brings
the division back to being a lender of l|ast resort, which was
the original intent. She believes the anobunts listed in the
bill are sufficient, based on the overall needs of the industry.
For those who need nore, there is WlIls Fargo, CFAB and Key
Bank, but "maybe not always at the nost optinmum interest rates
dependi ng upon the market, but there are avenues avail able."”

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked about M. Austernan.

M5. KLI NGERT said he had input.

2:30: 38 PM

CO CHAIR SAMUJELS asked about the six borrowers who wll be
grandfathered in and if M. Klingert 1is opposed to them
refinancing [within the division].

M5. KLI NGERT responded that she woul d have no objection.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the fund is for those turned down by
other institutions, "so how are you saying if we have them under

this |imt, then they have additional financing opportunities
for additional capital ?"

2:32:46 PM

M5. KLINGERT said the limt of the $335,000 is a |limt for one
i ndi vidual, and two people together would have a higher limt
because each person would have their limt. She added that, in

theory, Representative Seaton is correct, but the division is a
| ender of last resort providing "startup” noney for fishernen

"Cenerally sonebody who can qualify for $335,000 in financing
isn't going to have a problem with another institution,” she
sai d. They nmay not get the sane terns, but she thinks there
should be a cutoff point. Up until 1995 the limt was $300, 000,
and it was expanded through the years because the capital
requi renents had grown. But now those capital requirenments have
declined substantially over the | ast few years, she noted.

2:34: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said prices of black cod and |onglining
have gone up for the central GQulf of Al aska. He asked if CFAB

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2006



makes | oans for those. He questioned restricting the anmount of
the loan and the idea that capital needs have decreased.

MS. KLINGERT said permt and vessel prices have declined. She
said Representative Seaton is speaking of the quota market,
whi ch has an overabundance of I|enders wlling to finance on
guota share. The federal governnent is the |ender of choice and
has the nost |iberal lending terns, she said, but Wlls Fargo,
Key Bank, CFAB, and credit unions are |ooking at that market

"There's nore than anple institutions willing to finance quota."”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if CFAB will |oan sufficient noney
to soneone with a boat and not nuch el se, based on quota, to run
a business on. He asked what percentage of the quota share
priced at $20 per pound, is CFAB currently | oaning.

M5. KLI NGERT said the advance rate woul d be 50 percent.
2:36:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "If soneone wanted to get 20, 000-
pound quota share, they're talking $400,000, so you would have
to have outside collateral for $200,000, and you would | oan them
$200, 000 without any additional collateral...or do they have to
have additional collateral for your 50 percent?" He then asked,
“"Is the only requirenment for your l|loan the quota share itself,
or do you require additional collateral like a boat and a house
and that kind of thing?"

M5. KLINGERT said CFAB has done it multiply ways, and each

person is treated differently. "Credit i1s an art, not a
science," she noted. A diversified fisherman is less of a risk
than a fisherman in one fishery. She said it is not |ike

nort gage | ending where a person pays a |oan on an outside source
of income. A commercial loan is paid by the assets of the | oan,
and as a rule CFAB advances 50 percent of the purchase price
It could be 100 percent with other collateral to nmtigate the
risk to CFAB. She said the federal governnent has an advance
rate of 80 percent on a loan termof up to 30 years with a very
favorabl e interest rate.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if they have any noney.
M5. KLI NGERT said yes; they have had an abundance of funding for

the last few years, and they routinely mail letters to fishernen
soliciting | oans.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- April 3, 2006



2:39:49 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS expressed sone concern with Page 2, line 8. He
said he wll offer an anendnent that states: from another
recogni zed comrercial |ending institution. He said he will et
the Division of Investnents worry about the specifics, and he
suggested holding the bill to also clarify |anguage for the six
borrowers that will be grandfathered in.

M5. MOSS said the language in the bill would prohibit any |oan
that, conbined with other |oans, would exceed $335, 000. She
said there is a definition for a financial institution, as
Representative Gatto was curious about, and she suggested using
that term She said it is defined as an institution organized
under the Banking and Financial Institutions title, AS
06.05.990, or one that is subject to exam nation under that
title.

CO- CHAI R SAMUELS asked about banks not based in Al aska.

M5. MOSS said if a bank is lending noney in the State of Al aska,
it is regulated under AS 06. 05.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said there are state and federal charter
banks, so both would need to be incl uded.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from2:43:03 PMto 2:44:25 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS said HB 304 will be the first order of business
on Wednesday. He said anendnents will be offered on inflation
indexing, an increase in the loan I|imt, refinancing for
gr andf at hered borrowers, definition of lending institutions, and
an inflation indicator.

[ HB 304 was hel d over]
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- April 3, 2006



